
Special Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

Date Tuesday 30 April 2019
Time 9.30 am
Venue Committee Room 2 - County Hall, Durham

Business

Part A

Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. 
Members of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's 

agreement.

1. Apologies  
2. Substitute Members  
3. Declarations of Interest, if any  
4. Any items from Co-opted Members or interested parties  
5. Sustainable Heating - Overview  

a) Joint report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships 
and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services  
(Pages 3 - 6)

b) Presentation by Professor Jon Gluyas, Dean of knowledge 
Exchange, Dong/Ikon Chair of Geoenergy, Carbon Capture and 
Storage, Department of Earth Sciences, Durham University  
(Pages 7 - 38)

6. Climate Change Strategy and Delivery Plan and Carbon Management 
Plan - Progress  

a) Climate Change Strategy and Deliver Plan - Joint report of the 
Director of Transformation and Partnerships and the Corporate 
Director of Regeneration and Local Services  (Pages 39 - 48)

b) Carbon Management Plan - Joint Report of the Director of 
Transformation and Partnerships and the Corporate Director of 
Regeneration and Local Services  (Pages 49 - 56)

c) Presentation by Maggie Bosanquet, Sustainability and Climate 
Change Team Leader, Stephen McDonald, Principal Officer, 
Sustainability and Climate Change Team and Rosalind Farrow, 
Carbon and Energy Analyst  (Pages 57 - 68)



7. Approach on the Report to Full Council Regarding Climate Emergency 
Declaration - Overview  

a) Joint report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships 
and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services  
(Pages 69 - 74)

b) Presentation by Oliver Sherratt, Head of Environment, 
Regeneration and Local Services  (Pages 75 - 88)

8. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, 
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  

Helen Lynch
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall
Durham
22 April 2019

To: The Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Councillor E Adam (Chair)
Councillor O Milburn (Vice-Chair)

Councillors B Avery, D Bell, L Brown, J Carr, J Clark, R Crute, 
S Dunn, D Hicks, P Howell, P Jopling, C Kay, R Manchester, 
C Martin, A Patterson, A Simpson, P Sexton and M Wilson

Co-opted Members:
Mr T  Bolton and Mrs P Holding

Contact: Paula Nicholson Tel: 03000 269710



Environment and Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

30 April 2019

Sustainable Heating
 

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnership and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services

Electoral division(s) affected:
 Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1. The purpose of this report is to provide members of the committee with 

background information prior to a presentation by Professor Jon Gluyas, 
Dean of Knowledge Exchange, Dong/Ikon Chair of Geoenergy Carbon 
Capture and Storage, Department of Earth Sciences, Durham University 
focusing on sustainable heating.

Executive summary

2. Professor Jon Gluyas attended the special meeting of the Environment 
and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
November 2014 and gave a presentation focusing on Underground Coal 
Gasification (UCG).  Members present at that meeting invited Professor 
Gluyas back to committee on the 6 October 2015 to provide a further 
presentation on low carbon energy.

3. Members will recall that when agreeing the work programme for 2018/19 
it was highlighted that Professor Gluyas would be invited to a future 
meeting of the committee to deliver a presentation on sustainable heating.  
Arrangements have been made for Professor Jon Gluyas to attend the 
Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the 30 April 2019 to deliver a presentation focusing on:

 The important historic role played by County Durham in global 
energy production

Page 3

Agenda Item 5a



 The challenges facing County Durham in meeting carbon reduction 
targets

 The opportunities for County Durham to develop innovative, 
sustainable heat solutions that will meet our targets and create 
economic growth

A copy of the presentation slides are attached as appendix 2.

Recommendations
4. The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee is asked to note and comment on the content of the report 
and presentation.

Background
5. Between 1877 and 1956 County Durham’s miners played a crucial role 

in fuelling economic growth, producing 30 million tonnes of coal a year. 

6. Now, the County has challenging carbon reduction targets to meet. The 
Council has declared a climate emergency and aims to reduce carbon 
emissions from its own activities by at least 60% by 2030, whilst working 
towards a reduction of at least 80% across the whole county by 2050.

7. Energy from water, wind and solar will have a big part to play but, while 
carbon emissions from electricity have decreased significantly, 77% of 
UK heat is still produced from fossil fuels so that decarbonising heat will 
be essential. 

8. County Durham’s geology and its mining heritage now offer a new and 
innovative opportunity to generate sustainable heat from underground. 
The county’s abandoned, flooded mines present a significant heat 
legacy, while deep geothermal heat can be extracted from the county’s 
sedimentary basins. 

9. Mine water heat is largely located in the same places where heat 
demand now exists and the opportunity is so great that geothermal heat 
could supply the UK almost indefinitely. 

10. County Durham now has a unique opportunity to lead on the 
development of geothermal heat, to boost economic development and 
make significant strides towards meeting carbon reduction targets.

Conclusion 

11. Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee will be aware of the role that County Durham 
has played in global energy production, the challenges facing the county 

Page 4



in meeting the carbon reduction targets and opportunities for County 
Durham to develop innovative heating solutions that will meet current 
and future targets.

Background papers
 The Climate Emergency motion that was passed on 20th February 

2019 is attached as Appendix 3

Other useful documents
 None

Contact: Professor Jon Gluyas

Tom Gorman Tel:  03000 268 027

Diane Close Tel:  03000 268 141

Page 5



Appendix 1:  Implications

Legal Implications
Not applicable 

Finance
Not applicable

Consultation
Not applicable 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty

Not applicable 

Human Rights
Not applicable

Crime and Disorder
Not applicable

Staffing
Not applicable

Accommodation
Not applicable

Risk
Not applicable 

Procurement
Not applicable 

Page 6



Durham Energy Institute

County Durham:
Carbon neutral?

60% by 2030
100% by 2050

Jon Gluyas
DCC Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee, 30th April 2019

j.g.gluyas@durham.ac.uk

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 5b



County Durham – Carbon Neutral
Energy, Science and Society

Agenda for today
• A word from our sponsors – DEI
• Durham past – energy county
• Durham today – energy consumption
• Durham future – e-mission zero
• Durham resource base – earth wind and fire
The national picture – the big heat
• UK energy security and heat decarbonisation
• Durham geothermal – some like it hot

P
age 8



We face significant global challenges in the energy domain:

• Future energy security
• Creating sustainable low carbon energy systems
• Developing affordable energy services
• Reducing the risks associated with new energy technologies

This requires interdisciplinary knowledge and collaboration between academia, 
industry, government and society. 

The objective of the Durham Energy Institute is to work with its partners at the forefront 
of creating this new knowledge. 

Durham Energy Institute

Unlocking the 
Research Synergies

=+
Science 

Departments
Social Science 
Departments

DEI

Energy, Science and Society

P
age 9



County Durham was…
Energy, Science and Society

1877 to 1956, 30 million tons/year coal produced
15% of UK production from 0.65% of England & Wales population
1801 to 1965 England & Wales population increased five fold 
that of County Durham increased tenfold = inward investment

Photo itv.com

P
age 10



Energy, Science and Society

Transport 279,931	tonnes	oil	equivalent	
(3465	GWh)

66%	personal
34%	freight

Electricity 2816	GWh 28%	domestic
72%	industrial

Gas 4232	GWh 71%	domestic
29%	industrial

County Durham 
Energy Bill 2015

P
age 11



Energy, Science and Society

Year Baseline	measure Emissions
2014 2920	kt CO2	equivalent
2030 60%	reduction	of	1990	level 2251	kt CO2	equivalent
2050 100%	reduction	of	1990	level 0	kt CO2	equivalent

County Durham 
e-mission zero

Impacts
• Transport
• Domestic gas and oil use
• Industry gas and oil use

e-mission accomplished

P
age 12



Energy, Science and Society

Energy Durham: key 
metrics for success

KPIs
• Employment rate
• GVA
• Number of businesses
• Gross household disposable income
• Deprivation index reduction

P
age 13



Energy, Science and Society

County Durham:
Earth, wind & fire

Energy resource base
• Wear & Tees, the 

rivers flow
• The wind blows
• The sun shines
• The Earth is warm 

beneath our feet

Carillion, Durham

Gluyas, New Brancepeth Gluyas, Tow Law

Gluyas, Weardale

P
age 14



Energy, Science and Society

County Durham:
Earth, wind & fire

• Wear & Tees, 235 km combined length

• Only 1 water turbine

• Generation 100 kW (75% of Passport office needs)

• Onshore wind 

• West Durham 50 MW (15% of CD power consumption)

• County Durham solar insolation 900 kWh/m2

• Solar panels on 2% of CD (33% of urban/industrial) 

could generate 100% of CD power requirement

• Mine water heat

• To be continued….

P
age 15



The big heat

Energy, Science and Society

P
age 16



UK energy 
consumption

Energy, Science and Society

149,139,000 tonnes of oil equivalent
6.244 Exajoules (1018)
1.7345 Tera kilowatt hours (1012)

*Rebuilding Security, Energy Policy for an Uncertain World, 
Conservative Party policy document 2008

P
age 17



UK: CO2 emissions

Energy, Science and Society

Source – CCC Reducing UK Emissions, June 2018
https://www.theccc.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/06/CCC-2018-Progress-Report-to-Parliament.pdf

P
age 18



Electricity generated 

Energy, Science and Society

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/a
ttachment_data/file/720182/Press_Notice_June_18.pdf

Source – UK Energy Statistics

6th Nov 2018

P
age 19



Decarbonising UK electricity

Energy, Science and Society

www.mygrid.com 2030 target

P
age 20



Energy sources for 
heat generation

Energy, Science and Society

53%$

6%$
2%$

32%$

1%$
6%$ Gas$

Oil$

Solid$fuel$

Electricity$

Heat$sold1$

Bioenergy$&$
Waste1$

Source - BEIS Energy Consumption in the UK 2018 update

P
age 21



Heat’s fossil fuel 
dependency

Energy, Science and Society

• Gas 53%

• Oil 6%

• Solid fuel 2%

• Bioenergy+ 7%

• Electricity 32%

• Low Carbon 50%

• Gas 40%

• Coal 10%

• Burning fossil fuels supplies 77% of UK heat

• Gas 66%, Coal 5%, Oil 6%

66%#

6%#

5%#

23%#
Gas#

Oil#

Coal#

Low#carbon#

P
age 22



Energy secure?
Energy, Science and Society

DUKES 2018

P
age 23



Energy secure?
Energy, Science and Society

DUKES 2018

P
age 24



• Energy transformations & hence waste

• Geothermal energy
• The Earth is hot
• Geothermal gradient in the UK is 20-35° per km 

The Big Heat
Energy, Science and Society

100% Gas è 30-50% Electricity è

70-30% Heat é

Power plant icon by Dimitry Sunseifer

P
age 25



Role
• Research partnership promoting the UK 

geothermal resource
• Combines expertise from most recent 

deep drilling in the UK

• Lobbying government on UK geothermal 
development

• Partnering with industry to apply for 
research funding

• Raising awareness of geothermal as a 
future energy supply for the UK

www.britgeothermal.com

+ Edinburgh, 
Cranfield & others

P
age 26



Granites

Pros:
Possibility of heat 
and power 
production
Cons: 
Location? proximity 
to end users
May require 
Stimulation

Sedimentary 
basins

Pros:
Permeable formations 
may not require 
stimulation
Larger target
Cons: 
Location? proximity to 
end users

Oilfields

Pros:
Reduce risks/costs by 
using existing proven 
infrastructure
Cons: 
Location? proximity to 
end users

Mines

Pros:
Shallower reduced 
drilling costs
Extensive in UK urban 
areas
Cons: 
Ultra low enthalpy
Contaminants causing 
fouling/ochreP

age 27



UK heat 
supply 

potential

Energy, Science and Society

• Basins & granites 
could deliver >100 
years supply

P
age 28



UK abandoned 
mines

Energy, Science and Society

UK former coal mining areas
Source: The Coal Authority

England heat demand
http://csembaa1.miniserver.com/index.html

P
age 29

https://owa.dur.ac.uk/owa/redir.aspx?C=TpDxKN93MR_T_ibQ4Sy6sEaExioTQYIy57ixBpMPAoPO4gefWMLUCA..&URL=http://csembaa1.miniserver.com/index.html


• 15 bn tonnes coal 
mined

• 2bn m3 water
• 11,000 Gwh of heat 

in place (10 years)
• Ultra low enthalpy
• Heating and cooling
• 81 MW available
• Thermal storage 

36 billion GWh

Developing 
a legacy

P
age 30



County Durham
• Coal Output 2.5bn t
• Approx 10,000m3/day are 

pumped to maintain 
groundwater levels
• 0.4bn m3 of water in flooded 

workings
• Reserve in place heat for 

over 100,000 homes

P
age 31



City scale – Heerlen, 
Netherlands

P
age 32



Heat SWOT
Energy, Science and Society

• Strengths
• Substantial quantities of geothermal & waste heat
• It is the left over ‘bit’ in all energy transformations
• Storage of large quantities is easy

• Weaknesses
• Heat does not travel well

• Opportunities
• Heat from abandoned coal mines
• Heat from sedimentary basins
• Heat from industry
• Heat storage potential

• Threats
• Hot water has low energy density compared with fossil fuels

P
age 33



Conclusions
Energy, Science and Society

• About 40% of all energy used in the UK is for heating
• About 77% of heat generated  in the UK comes from 

burning fossil fuels
• About 66% of heat generated in the UK comes from 

burning gas (least secure energy vector)
• Decarbonisation of heat will be required for the UK to 

meet its emissions reduction commitments
• Geothermal (and waste) heat could supply the UK almost 

indefinitely
• Geothermal heat and heat demand are largely co-located
• Abandoned & flooded mine are a huge heat legacy

P
age 34



Appendix 3

Meeting of County Council 20 January 2019 

Motions on Notice

Councillor S Dunn to Move

Full Council notes:

1. It is clear that climate change is not only a reality but that our communities 
are becoming more and more aware of the changing weather and issues of 
flooding and extreme heat that was predicted would occur over 20 years ago;

2. Global temperatures have already increased by 1 degree Celsius from pre-
industrial levels, and atmospheric CO2 levels are above 400 parts per million 
(ppm). This far exceeds the 350 ppm deemed to be a safe level for humanity;

3. In order to reduce the chance of runaway Global Warming and limit the 
effects of Climate Breakdown, it is imperative that we reduce our CO2eq 
(carbon equivalent) emissions from their current 6.5 tonnes per person per 
year to less than 2 tonnes as soon as possible;

4. The world is on track to overshoot the Paris Agreement’s 1.5°C limit before 
2050. The IPCC’s Special Report on Global Warming of 1.5°C, published in 
October 2018, describes the enormous harm that a 2°C rise is likely to
cause compared to a 1.5°C rise, and told us that limiting Global Warming to 
1.5°C may still be possible with ambitious action from national and sub-
national authorities, civil society, the private sector, indigenous peoples and 
local communities;

5. We have seen over the past few months, leaders from all around the world 
coming together to slow down these impacts and it’s important at a local level 
that as a county council we also show some leadership in making a change.
It’s not too late if we all do what we can;

6. Individuals and local businesses cannot be expected to make this reduction 
on their own. Society needs to change its laws, taxation, infrastructure, etc., to 
make low carbon living easier and the new norm;

7. Carbon emissions result from both production and consumption and we 
need to ensure we tackle both these elements going forward;

8. Durham County Council has already show foresight and leadership when it 
comes to addressing the issue of Climate Breakdown, having adopted 
Durham Wide targets of reducing carbon emissions by 40% by 2020 (based 

Page 35



on 1990 levels). We have, compared to many authorities, excelled already 
achieving what was considered to be a stretch target;

9. All governments (national, regional and local) have a duty to limit the 
negative impacts of Climate Breakdown, and local governments that 
recognise this should not wait for their national governments to change their 
policies;

10.The UK’s entire society and entire economy need to be refocused to meet 
the looming challenge of ecological breakdown using the full power of the 
state to decarbonise the economy and create hundreds of thousands of green
jobs. We have to tackle climate change in a really radical way, the evidence is 
crystal clear and at the same time maximise the opportunities that clean 
growth, developing innovation and creating strong partnership with the private
sector can achieve;

11.Unfortunately, despite reassurance from our Prime Minister, austerity is still 
very much with us and probably will be for some time, we have some 
significant pressures as an authority supporting our elderly and an ever 
increasing number of children accessing our looked after services and we 
need to continue to develop our economy. However we must also take 
responsibility for our environment and ensure that we leave Durham in a 
better place for our children than the one we inherited. We need to get the 
balance right and ensure that we put something in place which is deliverable
but that makes significant progress towards making County Durham Carbon 
Neutral as quickly as possible and hopefully that takes our communities and 
our businesses along with us;

12.Councils around the world are responding by declaring a ‘Climate 
emergency’ and committing resources to address this emergency.

Full Council agrees to:
1. Declare a ‘Climate Emergency’;

2. Immediately adopt a new Durham County Council target of 60% by 2030 
making significant progress towards making Durham County Council and 
County Durham carbon neutral taking into account both production and 
consumption emissions;

3. Investigate what further actions are necessary to make County Durham 
Carbon Neutral by 2050 and pledge to achieve this;

4. Call on Westminster to provide the powers and resources to make the 2030 
and 2050 targets possible;

Page 36



5. Work with other agencies and bodies (both within the UK and 
internationally) to determine and implement best practice methods to limit 
Global Warming to less than 1.5°C;

6. Continue to work with partners across the county and region to identify 
opportunities for innovation, develop clean industries and a green economy 
and ensuring we have the right infrastructure for our communities to deliver on 
these new targets through all relevant strategies and plans;

7. Report to Full Council within six months with the actions the Council will 
need to take to achieve the new 2030 target and supply an initial report on 
what actions would be required to achieve a carbon neutral County Durham 
by 2050.

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment and Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

30 April 2019

Climate Change Strategy and Delivery Plan
 

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of 
Regeneration and Local Services

Electoral division(s) affected:
 Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1. To Provide the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee with detail of progress made in relation to the 
County Durham Climate Change Strategy and Delivery Plan and to 
engage in the development of the new Climate Emergency Response 
Plan.

Executive summary

2. The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee have received regular updates on the Climate Change 
Strategy and Delivery Plan since 2012 via presentations.

 
3. The role of Overview and Scrutiny in monitoring the Climate Change 

Strategy and Delivery Plan was further strengthened when Cabinet 
approved on the 15 July 2015 the Climate Change Strategy with the 
cover report specifically highlighted the role that the Environment and 
Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee had played 
and recommended:

‘That Cabinet continues to support the Environment and Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s role in monitoring 
progress.’

4. The last progress update was considered by the committee at its 
meeting in November 2017.  However, the committee at its meeting on 
the 13 July 2018 agreed to include in its future work programme a 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6a



further progress update on the Climate Change Strategy and Delivery 
Plan.
 

5. The report provides members with detail of the current position in 
relation to CO2 emissions in County Durham, renewable energy 
capacity, energy from technology other than wind, detail of delivery plan 
progress via the priority actions document and details of actions 
undertaken in relation to the plan.

6. It also presents an update on progress, following the Council Adoption 
of the ‘Climate Emergency’ motion in February 2019 and the 
subsequent new plan that is currently being developed to outline the 
challenge and opportunities in meeting these new targets.

Recommendations
7. The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee is asked to note and comment on the content of the report 
and presentation.

Background
8. The Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan run up to 2020, this is 

therefore the final presentation pertaining to the existing strategy. 
Furthermore the Carbon Management plan, the plan that focuses solely 
upon the Council’s emissions is also being updated, given that this also 
runs to 2020.

  
9. This report relates only to County Wide emissions and does not cover 

the ongoing activities of the Council’s Carbon Management Plan.

10. In 2016 County Durham emitted 2344.3 tonnes of CO2, an 107t 
decrease from the previous year and an overall 52% (per capita) 
reduction since 1990. The reduction in emissions comes mainly 
industrial, commercial and domestic emissions. However for the third 
year running we have seen an increase in Transport related emissions. 
The likely causes of the overall decrease include increased energy 
efficiency (including national decarbonisation of the electricity grid), and 
slightly higher annual temperatures for the North East, which reduces 
the use of heating. Graph 1 shows the changes in CO2 over time, 
plotted against the 40% reduction target. As can be noted, emissions 
are well below the expected level. County Durham is on course to 
achieve a 55% reduction by 2020.

Page 40



Graph 1 – Changes in CO2 Emissions

19
90

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Industry & Commercial
Domestic
Transport
Target 40% by 2020
Target 55% by 2020

Changes in CO2 Emissions

Year

Em
is

si
on

s k
TC

O
2

Graph 2 – Regional perspective 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
-

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.0

16.0

North East Sunderland Stockton-on-Tees South Tyneside

Redcar and Cleveland Northumberland North Tyneside Newcastle

Middlesbrough Hartlepool Gateshead Durham

Darlington

Regional CO2 emissions (t per/capita)

Page 41



11. The regional perspective graph shows how County Durham is doing in relation 
to other regional LA’s. Durham County has the joint third lowest per capita 
emissions in the region and is lower than the regional average.

12. Graph 3 show that across County Durham renewable electricity generation 
has increased by about 14% in the past 4 years, with the total amount of 
operational renewable energy capacity at 227MW (This is updated data taken 
from new BEIS statistics and shows an uplift from previous collated statistics)

Graph 3 – Total Renewable Energy Capacity in Co Durham

2014 2015 2016 2017
-

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0

Photovoltaics Onshore Wind Hydro Anaerobic Digestion

Sewage Gas Landfill Gas Plant Biomass

Total Renewable Energy Capacity in Co Durham

13. Wind continues to provide the majority of renewable energy capacity as 
can be seen by graph 3, there has been no new approved wind 
applications in County Durham since 2016 as a consequence of 
changes to planning guidance. There is however some optimism that 
BEIS are proposing changes to the planning system to be more 
encouraging towards wind. The County Durham Plan may also have a 
positive impact.

14. Solar PV has seen the largest growth out of all sectors since 2013, with 
50MW now installed on homes, community centres and businesses in 
the County, however the end of the Feed in Tariff has led to a reduction 
in solar pv installations throughout 2018 despite reductions in costs.

Page 42



The Delivery Plan
15. The Climate Change Delivery Plan, which runs to 2020, is a live 

document designed to monitor delivery of the Climate Change 
Strategy/Policy and to prioritise key actions. Some of the latest 
developments are highlighted in the following paragraphs.

16. Schools: 241 or 90% of County Durham schools are supported by the 
ECO 2 Smart Schools Programme which engages pupils, teachers and 
support staff in reducing energy costs and carbon emissions through 
lesson plans, behavioural change and energy monitoring. A Schools 
LED lighting retrofit project is currently being developed. 

17. Housing Regeneration: The Council’s £2.5 million ERDF Solid Wall 
Insulation Innovation (SWIi) project, which began in September 2017, 
will address fuel poverty in 220 County Durham homes by installing the 
latest technology in solid wall insulation.  Older stone and brick homes in 
the former mining villages of South Moor, Ramshaw, Cockfield and 
Ferryhill are being fitted with innovative external wall insulation systems. 
Smart heating controllers are also being installed into the homes to help 
monitor energy usage and save over 5,040 tons of carbon over the 
properties' lifetime. The insulation is a world leading process that can 
provide an authentic stone effect in keeping with the local housing stock.

18. Transport: The Electric Vehicle Working Group, consisting of officers 
from across the Authority, is actively engaged in considering a range of 
projects and solutions around EV charging infrastructure, in order to 
help facilitate the change to Electric Vehicles. 

19. Sustainable Travel: The team have been implementing a number of 
different schemes over the course of the year. The County Durham 
Strategic Cycling and Walking Delivery Plan was adopted in January 
2019.

EU Funding: 

20. The BEEP project has worked with 168 SME’s to date to provide them 
with free energy advice. The project has also approved grant funding 
totalling £110,486 across 25 SME’s and has saved circa 850t CO2. It 
has hosted two national conferences addressing energy efficiency 
needs in SMEs. The project has had national recognition and the team 
are currently working on obtaining further ERDF funding for a follow up 
project, BEEP2.

21. SME Power - SMEs for a low carbon future. This new transnational 
Interreg Europe project addresses the importance of targeting energy 
efficiency in SMEs, sharing good practice from partners across Europe 

Page 43



to influence future policy at EU and national level. We intend to focus on 
how to support micro-enterprises. Durham has been invited to take part 
because of our achievements to date through the BEEP project. Total 
project cost € 189,640 (€ 161,194 ERDF grant, i.e. 85% funded) The 
project is due to run for 4 years from 1st August 2019.

22. LOCARBO – Now in its second phase has identified Good Practices 
from other European partners. The project was showcased at a 
Community Energy England National Event and Interreg event in 
Florence. The action plan includes the development of a Virtual Power 
Station pilot activity focused on improving how ESIF carbon savings – 
and other project benefits/outputs - are captured and promoted across 
England. 

23. REBUS – now in its second and final phase. The first phased closed 
with a national conference showcasing the potential for minewater heat 
in public and other buildings in County Durham. An Energy Renovation 
Pathway document has been produced to aide local authorities in 
carrying our works. The action plan includes work supporting the new 
Low Carbon strategy for the County. 

24. Climate Adaptation: The Civil Contingencies Unit (CCU) is leading on 
a wide range of initiatives to tackle flooding and adaptation to climate 
change, one of which being the Community Safety Award. The CCU is 
engaging uniformed youth organisations across the county to complete 
the award, to ensure young people are better prepared and have a 
greater knowledge of how they can help themselves and their 
communities during emergencies. The CCU is also working with primary 
schools on emergency preparedness.  EA are continuing to undertake 
natural flood management in a variety of areas including upper 
Weardale and the de-culverting of the Cong Burn at Chester-le-Street is 
due to begin. 

25. Waste: From March to December 2018, 96% of municipal waste was 
diverted away from landfill through active engagement, kerbside 
recycling, green waste collections and sending residual waste to an 
energy from waste facility.  In the same period 44% of household waste 
was reused, recycled, or composted. From March to December, the 
energy from waste plant generated 47,082MW of electricity, enough to 
power 5,138 houses for a year. The Household Waste Recycling Centre 
at Stainton Grove has recently re-opened and includes a re-use shop to 
further support our targets.

26. District heating: Discussions are continuing to take place to examine 
the potential for district heating in Durham City. There is currently 

Page 44



significant developer interest in the project and we are exploring next 
steps.

27. Regional Low Carbon Strategy: The LA7 (led by Durham) procured in 
2018, ‘Element Energy’ to undertake a study examining how the region 
can significantly decarbonise in order to reach 2050 Zero Carbon goals. 
The Final report is due imminently. However initial drafts, provide useful 
information on the kind of projects that could have a significant impact 
upon Regional and County emissions. 

28. The Council is continuing to develop relationships with key 
Stakeholders, including Northumbrian Water, Northern Powergrid and 
Northern Gas Networks and the NELEP.

29. Minewater: DCC are examining a range of opportunities around the 
potential for utilising minewater within the County. There has been 
progression on the DCC Louisa Centre project, which will be detailed in 
the Carbon Management Plan report, however further development 
work around mapping of the minewater heat resource and demand is 
also in development. 

Conclusion and Next Steps
30. Following the adoption of the ‘Climate Emergency’ motion by Full 

Council on the 20th February, the Low Carbon Team have been tasked 
with developing a new Climate Emergency Response Plan. This will 
replace the Climate Change Strategy and also sit above the Carbon 
Management Plan.

31. The outline of the new Plan will be presented to Full Council on the 17th 
July. It is anticipated that this will include an outline of the Low carbon 
activities that will need to be considered in order to meet our new 60% 
Council reduction target and the proposed zero carbon by 2050 County 
Wide target. 

32. The structure for the new report is included in the accompanying report 
from the Head of Environment Services

Background papers
 The Climate Emergency Motion

 The Climate Change Strategy - 
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/media/12895/Durham-
Climate-Change-Strategy/pdf/DurhamClimateChangeStrategy.pdf

Page 45

http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/media/12895/Durham-Climate-Change-Strategy/pdf/DurhamClimateChangeStrategy.pdf
http://www.countydurhampartnership.co.uk/media/12895/Durham-Climate-Change-Strategy/pdf/DurhamClimateChangeStrategy.pdf


Contact: Stephen McDonald Tel:  03000 265 537

Maggie Bosanquet Tel:  03000 265 549

Page 46



Appendix 1:  Implications

Legal Implications
Not applicable 

Finance
Not applicable

Consultation
The proposal is for a series of stakeholder engagement meetings and 
workshops on the plan to take place from autumn 2019

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
A changing climate will impact on everyone, across the world, but research 
suggests that the poorest people are likely to suffer the worst impacts, so 
reducing carbon emissions now will contribute to future equality 

Human Rights
Not applicable

Crime and Disorder
Not applicable

Staffing
Within the remit of the Low Carbon Economy Team to develop

Accommodation
Not applicable

Risk

Durham County Council has declared a climate emergency and set targets 
against a backdrop of national and international protest and will mitigate any 
risk by undertaking detailed planning and consultation. 

Procurement
Not applicable 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



Environment and Sustainable 
Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee

30 April 2019

Carbon Management Plan

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services

Electoral division(s) affected:
Countywide

Purpose of the Report

1 To provide Members of the Environment & Sustainable Communities 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee with a progress report on the Carbon 
Management Plan.

Executive Summary

2 The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee at its meeting on the 13 July 2018 agreed to include a further 
progress update on the Carbon Management Plan in its 2018/2019 work 
programme.

3 The committee receives on an annual basis an update on how DCC is 
performing in relation to reducing its carbon emissions with the last progress 
update provided to the committee in November 2017.

4 The report provides members of the committee with detail of DCC’s 
emissions, ongoing projects, future work to be undertaken and financial 
savings.

5 Arrangements have been made for members of the Low Carbon Economy 
Team, Regeneration and Local Services to attend the meeting on the 30 April 
2019 and provide a presentation focusing on:

 Environment OSC – Carbon Management Plan Report – Progress in 
2018/19

 Projects delivered

 On-going projects

 Future work.

Page 49

Agenda Item 6b



2

Recommendations

6 That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee note and comment on the content of the report and presentation.

7 That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee includes in its future work programme for 2019/2020 a further 
progress update on the Carbon Management Plan.

Background

8 The County Council’s first Carbon Management Plan covered 2010-15 and it 
has been succeeded by a second plan covering the years to 2020. This 
second plan aimed to meet 40% by 2020. In January 2019 ReaL 
Management Team gave approval for the 40% target to be uplifted to 45% by 
2020, given that we met the 40% target in 2018. 

Overview

9 The Carbon Management Plan covers emissions from the operations of the 
Authority and includes carbon emissions from electricity used and heating 
from buildings and from fuel used in transporting staff as part of their duties.

10 The Carbon Programme Board has continued to direct carbon reduction 
activities, supported by the Revenue and Capital Boards which lead on 
project activities.

11 The Council is continuing to make carbon savings across its portfolio with 
reductions coming from behavioural changes, building improvements and a 
rationalising of the estate.  The following chart show progress to date and a 
breakdown by source.

2008/9 2017/18
-

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

Fleet

Business Mileage

Miscellaneous

Street Lighting

Other Schools

Primary Schools

Secondary Schools

Social Care

Leisure and Culture

Operational Buildings

Emissions Distribution in 2008/09 and 2017/18

tC
O

2e

Page 50



3

12 The graph below shows our progress since the baseline year of 2008/09. In 
March 2018 the 40% reduction target was achieved, and in January 2019 the 
increase to a 45% target was agreed. Figures on our carbon footprint for 
2018/19 will be published in July 2019.

13 This comparison graph shows the change in carbon emissions between 
2016/17 and 2017/18. It is clear that the street lighting replacement project 
has made a huge contribution to our carbon reduction. It is also clear that a 
very significant part of our footprint is from our school buildings.

08
/0

9

09
/1

0

10
/1

1

11
/1

2

12
/1

3

13
/1

4

14
/1

5

15
/1

6

16
/1

7

17
/1

8

18
/1

9

19
/2

0

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Actual 
Emissions

40% Target 
Emissions

45% Target 
Emissions

Annual CO2e Emissions Target Lines

To
nn

es
 C

O
2e

Busin
ess 

Mile
ag

e
Fle

et

Str
eet L

igh
tin

g

Se
co

ndary
 Sc

hools

Prim
ary

 Sc
hools

Other S
ch

ools

So
cia

l C
are

Le
isu

re an
d Cultu

re

Operat
ional 

Build
ings

Misc
ella

neous
-

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

2016-17

Comparison of CO2e emissions between 2016/17 and 
2017/18

tC
O

2e

Page 51



4

14 In 2017/18 emissions from Council operations reduced significantly and we 
are on schedule to meet our new 2020 target.  This is as a result of a number 
of factors including;

 Decarbonising of the electricity grid - Electricity is not as carbon 
intensive as it was;

 Street lighting LED replacements - Results of project are now visible;

 Portfolio rationalisation - Reduction in the number of properties;

 Energy efficiency projects in retained buildings;

 Renewable electricity generation;

 Monitoring and targeting work;

 Relatively mild winters.

On-going projects

15 Since the last report a number of work packages have been delivered.  The 
fourth phase of the Building Energy Efficiency Retrofit (BEER) project has 
been completed at Spectrum 8, the Education Development Centre, the Gala 
Theatre, and Teesdale and Woodhouse Close Leisure Centres.  LED lighting 
and improved insulation have been installed, saving approximately £50,000 
per year and reducing our annual carbon footprint by 160 tonnes.

16 Following a rebrand, the ECO2Smart Schools Programme (formerly Schools 
Carbon Reduction Programme) has been continuing, with schools who have 
bought into the energy management SLA.  A new website has been launched 
containing a wealth of information and resources for the schools. 

17 LED lighting installations DCC buildings – Light BEER. First phase of 11 
building buildings is underway, with installations at Annand House and 
Clayport Library complete. This will save annually 120 tCO2e and £60,000.

18 The Street Lighting LED Retrofit programme has delivered significant savings 
and the first phase of it has now concluded. The programme has been very 
successful in reducing energy use across our highway network. The following 
chart shows the carbon savings that have been realised up to the end of 
2017/18. 

Page 52

https://eco2smartschools.org.uk/


5

19 The chart shows the carbon footprint associated with our road use. While 
street lighting used to be the biggest source of carbon emissions, it is now 
fleet which holds that title.

Future work

20 The programme includes a number of actions that are speculative in nature 
and not all proposed projects progress to completion. The following are 
projects from the Low Carbon Economy Team;

 Working with fleet to introduce electric vehicles.

 Tanfield Solar Farm will provide electricity directly to Comeleon House. 
Work is due to be completed on this project in summer 2019.

 Following the success of the solar photovoltaic array projects (SPA), we 
are revisiting solar PV on DCC buildings. 

 We are working to develop and deliver a LED lighting replacement 
scheme for DCC maintained schools, which will be known as Enlighten.

 Investigating a bid to ERDF for the development of a zero carbon 
depot, which could include battery storage, solar PV, EV charging, heat 
retrofit projects and EV’s

 A project is being explored for the Louisa Centre, which is plans to 
deliver an innovative energy efficiency retrofit. It will include a mine 
water source heat pump, solar photovoltaics, LED lighting, and 
improved insulation.

 Heat recovery and storage will be essential to meet our carbon targets. 
Renewable heat is harder to deliver than electricity, but we are 

2008/9 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
-

2,000,000

4,000,000

6,000,000

8,000,000

10,000,000

12,000,000

14,000,000

16,000,000

18,000,000

Business Mileage
Fleet
Street Lighting

Transport and Street Lighting

kg
CO

2e

Page 53



6

investigating the possibility of storing waste heat in innovative batteries 
and using it when there is greater demand. Heat recovery from some 
sources can also be used to provide direct heating to buildings.

Conclusion

21 Members of the committee will be aware of the various projects and initiatives 
undertaken by Durham County Council to reduce carbon emissions and how 
they are performing.  The committee will also have received detail of projects 
which are being developed with the aim of reducing DCC’s carbon emissions 
further. 

22 The committee will continue to monitor the progress of DCC in reducing 
emissions in the future by including in its 2019/2020 work programme a 
further progress report on the Carbon Management Plan.

Background Papers

Durham County Council Carbon Management Plan 2015-2020

Contact: Stephen McDonald
Rosalind Farrow

Tel:  03000 265 537
Tel:  03000 265 546

Page 54



7

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Legal Implications
Not applicable 

Finance
The Carbon Reduction Programme has made significant financial savings for the 
authority Consultation

Consultation 
The proposal is for a series of stakeholder engagement meetings and workshops on 
the plan to take place from autumn 2019

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
A changing climate will impact on everyone, across the world, but research suggests 
that the poorest people are likely to suffer the worst impacts, so reducing carbon 
emissions now will contribute to future equality 

Human Rights
Not applicable

Crime and Disorder
Not applicable

Staffing
Within the remit of the Low Carbon Economy Team to develop

Accommodation
Not applicable

Risk
Durham County Council has declared a climate emergency and set targets against 
a backdrop of national and international protest and will mitigate any risk by 
undertaking detailed planning and consultation. 

Procurement
Not applicable 

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Climate Change Strategy and 
Delivery Plan and Carbon Management Plan

Maggie Bosanquet, Team Leader – Low Carbon Economy 

Stephen McDonald, Principal Officer – Low Carbon Economy

Rosalind Farrow, Carbon and Energy Analyst – Low Carbon Economy 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6c



Content
• Climate Change Strategy

• Emissions Change

• Renewable Energy Capacity 

• Progress/Projects in 2018

• Carbon Management Plan
• Targets

• Current Projects

• Future Projects

P
age 58



Current County Durham Context

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

E
m

is
si

o
n

s 
k

T
C

O
2

Year

Changes in CO2 Emissions

Transport

Domestic

Industry & Commercial

Target 40% by 2020

Target 55% by 2020

P
age 59



Installed Renewable Energy Capacity

 -

 50.0

 100.0

 150.0

 200.0

 250.0

2014 2015 2016 2017

Photovoltaics Onshore Wind Hydro Anaerobic Digestion Sewage Gas Landfill Gas Plant Biomass

P
age 60



Progress Actions

• Schools

• 241 or 90% of County Durham schools are supported by the ECO2 
Smart Schools Programme

• Housing Regeneration

• £2.5 million ERDF Solid Wall Insulation Innovation (SWii) project

• Transport

• Dedicated Electric Vehicle Working Group, engaged in helping the 
roll out of EV cars and Infrastructure

• Communities

• Civil Contingency Unit support with Emergency Plans

• De-Culverting of the Cong-Burn at Chester-le-Street

• Business 

• 168 SME’s supported through BEEP. Grant Funding of £110k

P
age 61



Partnership Working

• North East LEP

• Durham University

• Durham Energy Institute Board

• Northern Gas Networks

• Northern Powergrid

• Northumbrian Water

• Coal Authority – Minewater Opportunities

• LA7 Officer Working Group

P
age 62



• CMP 2015-2020: target 40% from 2008/09

• March 2018: 40% reduction from 2008/09

• January 2019: target increase agreed

• 2018-19: figures due in July 2019

Carbon Management Plan
2018-19

P
age 63



Carbon Management Plan
2018-19

P
age 64



Successful work of the last year:

• Light BEER

• Eco2Smart Schools

• BEER 4

• Peterlee Pathways

• SLERP 1

Carbon Management Plan
2018-19

P
age 65



Proposed work for the next year:

• Tanfield Solar Farm

• SPA 3

• Zero Carbon Depot

• Louisa Centre

Carbon Management Plan
2018-19

P
age 66



Looking further ahead:

• Climate Emergency Response – 17th July

• Areas of focus:
• Transport

• Heat and insulation

• Electrical generation

• Monitoring and targeting

Carbon Management Plan
2018-19

P
age 67



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Environment and Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

30 April 2019

Approach on the Report to Full Council

Regarding Climate Emergency Declaration
 

Joint report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation and 
Partnership and Ian Thompson, Corporate Director of Regeneration 
and Local Services

Electoral division(s) affected:
 Countywide

Purpose of the Report
1. To describe to Members of the Environment and Sustainable 

Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee the proposed approach 
in the drafting of a report to full Council scheduled for 17 July 2019 in 
describing how Council and County climate change targets may be met.

2. To allow the opportunity for Scrutiny Members to influence this approach 
through any comments they may have. 

Executive summary

3. Full Council require an outline plan on how Council and County Durham 
carbon targets are to be met. This is scheduled for 17 July 2019.

4. The proposed approach, which is subject to Members’ views, is to 
provide in this future Council report an outline of the series of measures 
either by the Council or working with partners that will make progress in 
achieving them. However, this work is intended as the start of a process 
and not an end, and therefore it is proposed to facilitate a series of 
workshops and events in the Autumn, to generate more interest and 
carbon reducing initiatives across the community and business sector, 
as well as understanding more about the barriers that exist, so that they 
can be addressed where possible. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 7a



5. Arrangements have been made for Oliver Sherratt, Head of 
Environment to attend the Environment and Sustainable Communities 
OSC on the 30 April 2019 to deliver a presentation seeking scrutiny’s 
comments on the approach to the six month plan.

Recommendation

6. The Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee is asked to note and comment on the content of the report 
and presentation.

7. That the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee includes in its future work programme for 2019/2020 
the monitoring of the progress made in relation to the further 
development of the plan and the identified targets.  

Background

8. On 20 February 2019 full Council declared a climate emergency and 
adopted for Durham County Council a 60% reduction from its 2008/9 
levels of carbon emissions by 2030 and also resolved to investigate 
what further actions are necessary to make County Durham carbon
neutral by 2050.

9. In furtherance of this, it was resolved that a report was required to Full 
Council within six months with the actions the Council will need to take 
to achieve the new 2030 target and supply an initial report on what 
actions would be required to achieve a carbon neutral County Durham 
by 2050.

10. Six months from the date of the resolution is 20th August 2019, and 
therefore accounting for Council recess, it is proposed to have the report 
come to Council on 17th July 2019. This will be accompanied by a series 
of displays and demonstrations to highlight some of the work already 
underway.

Approach to the Report

11. Oliver Sherratt, Head of Environment will present to Members the 
intended approach to culminate in the report on 17th July 2019. Given 
the copious context of international and national strategy and law, whilst 
vitally important as a framework, it is not proposed that the report would 
recite our obligations. Instead its prime focus will be a pragmatic 
approach as to how the targets may be met. 
 

Page 70



12. Crucial in developing the approach is the context that Durham County 
Council only contributes 3% of total carbon emissions in the County 
compared to 97% from external sources both domestic, commercial and 
industrial. The role of the County Council, is therefore not one solely of 
setting the best possible example, but key elements of the plan need to 
set out how countywide reductions can be better achieved facilitating 
through awareness, support, partnership, regulation and where 
necessary national lobbying.

13. The proposed report before full Council will contain a wide range of 
ideas and an outline action plan. It should however be seen as just a 
start, with a series of stakeholder engagement meetings and workshops 
proposed to further develop and detail how we can, working together 
address this vital issue.

14. The presentation to Members will provide a draft scope of the full 
Council report so that Scrutiny can influence its shaping. Furthermore, 
the vital role of Scrutiny is also recognised, in not only overseeing 
progress against targets, but crucially identifying gaps, and lobbying for 
changes in regulation, taxation or law as felt necessary.

Conclusion 

15. Members of the Environment and Sustainable Communities Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee will be aware of the climate emergency that has 
been declared. 

16. The Council has set some ambitious long term targets, and an outline 
plan to be presented to Council on 17th July will present a range of 
actions, many underway. It is important that these are well coordinated 
and the proposals will set out some suggestions on governance. The 
plan itself will not contain all the answers however, and therefore a 
series of stakeholder engagement exercises are proposed as part of its 
on-going development. Scrutiny will have a crucial role in monitoring 
progress and identifying barriers to this, should they arise.

Background papers
 The Climate Emergency motion that was passed on 20th February 

2019 is attached as Appendix 3 (Agenda item 5)

Page 71



Contact:

Oliver Sherratt 03000 269259

Page 72



Appendix 1:  Implications

Legal Implications
Not applicable 

Finance
Not applicable

Consultation
The proposal is for a series of stakeholder engagement meetings and 
workshops on the plan to take place from autumn 2019.

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty
A changing climate will impact on everyone, across the world, but research 
suggests that the poorest people are likely to suffer the worst impacts, so 
reducing carbon emissions now will contribute to future equality 

Human Rights
Not applicable

Crime and Disorder
Not applicable

Staffing
Not applicable

Accommodation
Not applicable

Risk

Durham County Council has declared a climate emergency and set targets 
against a backdrop of national and international protest and will mitigate any 
risk by undertaking detailed planning and consultation. 

Procurement
Not applicable 

Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

Responding to the  
Climate Emergency.

Approach to the 6 
month full Council 
Report

Oliver Sherratt
Head of Environment

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 7b



DCC 20th February 2019
(Extract)
Declared a ‘Climate Emergency’;
Adopted a  new Durham County Council target of 60% by 
2030 making significant progress towards making Durham 
County Council and County Durham carbon neutral taking 
into account both production and consumption emissions;
Investigate what further actions are necessary to make 
County Durham Carbon Neutral by 2050 and pledge to 
achieve this;
Report to Full Council within six months with the actions the 
Council will need to take to achieve the new 2030 target 
and supply an initial report on what actions would be 
required to achieve a carbon neutral County Durham by 
2050.

P
age 76



This presentation seeks 
Scrutiny comments on the 

approach to the 6 Month Plan

P
age 77



It won’t begin with a recitation of 
hundreds of strategies and plans

P
age 78



but rather begin by answering

• Why is it important for:

• Residents
• Communities
• Businesses
• Public Organisations

P
age 79



Then provide the context

• International, National and 
Regional Drivers.

• Local context including what 
the targets mean and the 
scale of challenge before us.

• In 2016/17 Durham County 
Council had 69,377 tonnes of 
carbon emission (3%), the 
rest of the County 2,344,298 
tonnes.(97%) of total 
emissions

P
age 80



It would take stock of 
achievements to date.

P
age 81



and then come to the meat in 
the sandwich.

An outline plan for how:

1.Durham County Council 
can meet its targets.

2.The scope of works and 
initiatives needed to 
meet the Countywide 
targets.

P
age 82



• Whole Council Approach

• Fleet – transition to low emission vehicles

• Schools – education and building improvements

• Heat retention – insulation projects

• Renewable heat generation

• Renewable electricity generation

• Eco Advocates – staff behavior. Staff and Members as 
residents

• Monitoring and targeting

Council action plan refined through

internal workshops. Prior to July 2019

Focus Area:  DCC 60% 2030 Action Plan

P
age 83



Focus Areas:

• Facilitate transition to low carbon transport

• Heat retention – insulation projects

• Renewable electricity generation

• District heating schemes

• Low carbon heat generation

• Business support (BEEP)

County Durham Action Plan
Carbon neutral by 2050

P
age 84



How we organise ourselves to 
achieve it

• Partnership Framework – across all sectors
• Governance and reporting lines.
• Young people engagement (already 

underway)
• Risk Management
• Role of Overview and Scrutiny

P
age 85



Outline Plan as Engagement Tool

Outline Plan is a start, not an 
end.

From the autumn a  programmed series 
of workshops with businesses, 
Community groups, schools, public 
organisations and residents. 

Have we got it right?
What is missing?
What can YOU or your 
organisation do?

P
age 86



Summary
• As the Council contributes only 3% to carbon 

emissions, success is only possible by working with 
others. 

• We can set the best example we can however, and the 
outline plan will illustrate the steps we need to take.

• Crucially the Outline Plan will be utilised as a vehicle 
for further engagement through external workshops to 
formulate more ideas and activity across the County.

• A more detailed plan can be developed thereafter, 
which may involve wider lobbying for regional/national 
changes.

• Scrutiny will have a key role in monitoring progress 
towards the targets, and identifying and advocating 
changes in policy where required.

P
age 87



Members thoughts and 
suggestions are welcome

P
age 88


	Agenda
	5a Joint report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services
	5b Presentation by Professor Jon Gluyas, Dean of knowledge Exchange, Dong/Ikon Chair of Geoenergy, Carbon Capture and Storage, Department of Earth Sciences, Durham University
	Appendix 3 for Sustainable heating report

	6a Climate Change Strategy and Deliver Plan - Joint report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services
	6b Carbon Management Plan - Joint Report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services
	6c Presentation by Maggie Bosanquet, Sustainability and Climate Change Team Leader, Stephen McDonald, Principal Officer, Sustainability and Climate Change Team and Rosalind Farrow, Carbon and Energy Analyst
	7a Joint report of the Director of Transformation and Partnerships and the Corporate Director of Regeneration and Local Services
	7b Presentation by Oliver Sherratt, Head of Environment, Regeneration and Local Services

